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Amy Gloury

From:
Sent: Monday, 14 April 2025 2:54 PM
To: Moorabool Info
Cc:
Subject: Submission Planning Scheme Amendment C085moor

Categories:

Good afternoon, 

The Wurundjeri Woi-wurrung Cultural Heritage Aboriginal Corporation Cultural Heritage Unit Elders have 
reviewed the portion of Amendment C85Mor that falls within the Wurundjeri RAP area and have 
requested that I provide the following responses: 

 We note that although the portion of the amendment area that falls on Wurundjeri Country does
not include any VAHR registered places, there are multiple waterways present in this area. These
waterways are areas of legislated cultural heritage sensitivity under the Aboriginal Heritage Act
2006 and are highly sensitive and significant to Wurundjeri people.

 We recommend that Aboriginal cultural heritage and sensitivity be more explicitly recognised in
the planning scheme amendment as a means of raising awareness of Aboriginal cultural heritage.
This could improve outcomes for all parties.

 We note that mandatory CHMPs be required for high impact activities within the areas of cultural
heritage sensitivity as defined under the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006 and Aboriginal Heritage
Regulations 2018.

As such, the Elders request that Moorabool City Council takes the above information into account when 
considering the planning scheme amendment.  

Kind regards, 

 
Heritage Advisor 
Cultural Heritage Unit 

Wurundjeri Woi-wurrung Cultural Heritage Aboriginal Corporation 
 

Submission 05















2 | P a g e

2. The Significance of the Geomorphology.

The geomorphology of the property is very significant as the site of the house and the 
working farm were, it appears, chosen because of the specific features of the land and 
its geomorphology. The features of the land which were attractive to the original owner 
were the fertile and friable volcanic soil; the availability of water because of the high 
water table due to the close proximity of the extinct volcano, Kerrit Bareet (now referred 
to as Black Hill). Both the house and working farm are located close to springs and 
spring-fed bog, (which is now a spring fed-pond). The original house water supply is 
from a spring-fed well to the west of the back door. This well was filled in in the early 
2000’s. 

The farm, being relatively modest in acreage, nevertheless was able to support workers 
and household servants. The economics of the farm was a defining factor in the social 
arrangements on the farm and of the layout of the house; specifically, the requirements 
to house live-in servants to service the house and household. 

3. The Internal Form of the House.

The house consists of three levels – basement, ground floor and first floor. The internal 
form of the house was a response to specific social arrangements typical of the period, 
where wealthier people had servants. In the case of  this was an “upstairs 
downstairs” house, where the servants lived and worked in the basement - and provided 
domestic services to the family living upstairs in the house proper.  

The following features of the layout of the house are relevant: 
1. The basement is serviced by two staircases; one internal the other external.
This arrangement allowed the family and the servants to operate in a
coordinated but independent fashion. The Servants could both fulfill their
duties to the household upstairs as well as to those duties which required
them to work outside the house and to come and go without entering the
house proper.
2. The 11 rooms of the house proper are devoid of utility rooms such as kitchen
and bathroom. It appears that all cooking and bathing were carried out in the
basement, where there exists a large open kitchen fireplace with integrated
water boiler and a separate oven. The chimney at the rear of the house
services the basement fires exclusively.
3. One can envisage the routines of the household, where food was cooked in
the kitchen in the basement and carried up the internal stairs to be served in
the dining room – and warm water being carried upstairs for bathing and
cleaning, etc. There is a small room in the basement at the end of the hallway
that may have been a primitive bathroom for servants and possibly the family.
Servants would have prepared meals at a table in the kitchen and possibly in
the smaller room along he hallway; gathered at the kitchen table for meals
and around the open fire for warmth and conversation.
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4. Water from the boiler is delivered to a faucet where hot water could be drawn
off for cooking cleaning and bathing. There is no evidence of water
reticulation to the ground level or the upstairs bedrooms.
5. Access to and from the basement from outside, was cleverly designed, to take
servants through a back door beneath the ground floor back door to an
external stair which ran up alongside the western wall of the basement.
(bridging over the brick arched enclosure housing the boiler at the rear of the
kitchen fireplace).

4. The Buildings of the Working Farm.

The main farm shed very large and impressive in its own right. Its frame is made of 
timber, likely cut in the process of clearing the land. The main uprights are large poles 
and the timbers are rough sawn. Given the house was not built until the 1870’s, it is 
possible that the main shed pre-dates the house itself. (See section entitled ‘Clarifying 
when the house was built’. Page 6.)  It would be surprising if the shed is not of 
aesthetic, social and scientific significance in its own right – a should perhaps be 
included in the West Moorabool Heritage Study. 

An aspect of the sheds’ history is noteworthy. The prevailing wind from the west has 
caused the shed to lean towards the east. Several times in its life the farmer has 
corrected the lean by digging out the sheds’ poles and moving them east. The result is 
that the shed has been moved from where it was originally built by a number of meters. 

Between the house and the big shed there are several smaller sheds. One of these is a 
shearing shed with sheep yards. Another is a butchery, or killing shed where meat for 
the use of the farm community was killed and butchered. 
Technical Challenges in Building the House. 

The geomorphology of the site had a profound effect on the technical difficulties of 
building a house with an occupied basement, inasmuch as the ground water constantly 
threatened to inundate the basement. This challenge would have been present form 
the moment the house site was prepared for foundations and the subsequent building 
works. The excavation for the basement would have needed to be drained by a deep 
gully draining ground water downhill towards the south. A layer of well-draining material 
and a drainage system would have to have been constructed beneath the earthen floor 
of the basement, in order to keep the basement dry. This drainage system would need 
to lower the surrounding water table by up to 3 meters and maintain the lowering of the 
water table no matter how wet the season was. (See note below) 

Authors note: When I bought  the basement was inundated with almost 
a meter of water. The downstairs floor structure had rotted and the masonry of the 
house above was afflicted with serious rising damp. The house had consequently been 
abandoned. In an attempt to understand why the basement was flooded I undertook to 
first understand the behaviour of the ground water in the surrounding landscape. I 
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brought in an excavator and instructed the operator to dig a trenchlike hole as deep the 
machine would permit. The hole was dug some meters to the north of the house. A 
hole some four meters deep was dug into the basalt and ironstone clay. It took 
approximately 12 hours to fill with ground water to the level of the surrounding water 
table and it filled to within 850mm on the surface. The farmer, Tom Clifford Snr, pointed 
out the outlet of a drainage pipe, some 50 meters from the house, which, according to 
Tom, was connected to the under-floor surface of the basement. The drainage pipe was 
lying in water and did not seem to be flowing. After some consideration, I brought the 
excavator in again, and instructed the operator to dig out the drain down the paddock. 
This he did and the water began to flow out of the 10inch earthenware pipe. 24 hours 
later the basement was free of water. 

I then dug a hole through the floor of the basement to expose the ground water level. 
The surface of the ground water was now steady at 300mm below the floor of the 
basement.  With a little arithmetic I concluded that the drainage system under the house 
was consistently lowering the water table by some 2 meters from the surrounding 
landscape. Incidentally, the kitchen in the basement also has a drain for domestic waste 
water which presumably drains into the 10inch earthenware pipe which keeps the 
basement dry. 

The drainage system operates passively without the need for pumps. The water-table 
revealed in the sump in dug in the floor of the basement has not moved up or down in 
35 years. This notable technical achievement is, surely, of scientific significance. 

5. The Puzzle of the Orientation of the House.

The name of the property is significant inasmuch as it is emblematic of the English oaks 
planted around the property and may explain the remnant line of four oaks in front of the 
house to the east. It is noteworthy that the house faces east towards  
The driveaway to the house was, until my ownership, also the driveway to the farm 
sheds. It is plausible to conceive that the main entry and driveway to the house was to 
the east from ; the driveway being lined with English oaks, of which the 
remain four oaks are a remnant.  

Farming land in the areas of rich volcanic soils are highly valued. It is probable that 
under the ownership by  the main driveway with its lines of oaks was 
removed, to increase the area of arable land. This change left access to the house via 
the remaining service driveway, which passed close to the rear of the house and also 
leads to the farm sheds. This interpretation would both make sense of the house facing 
to the east, the line of four English oaks at the front of the house in an east west 
orientation, and explain why the service track to the back of the house and the farm 
sheds is now the main driveway to the house. If this interpretation is true the this is a 
significant element in properly understanding the house. 
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A friend, , an accomplished painter of patinaed surfaces, who visited the 
house 30 years ago earnestly asked me to promise that I would “not allow a 
conventional painter near the house”. Later, I asked architectural historian,  

 who visited the house several times in the late 1990’s, how I should treat the 
internal surfaces. He said to me “If you a very brave you will not touch the walls and 
ceilings or the finishes of the joinery”. I have abided by the entreaties of both  

. 

Interestingly, the upstairs walls have some graffiti inscriptions done in pencil by the 
 children. There is also a signed and dated inscription described as “A 

Prediction” - “In 1990 there will be a war in the middle east caused by oil and greed”. 
The date is smudged and not readable. The hand writing is in an older style of cursive 
handwriting. I  

The question remains are the internal surfaces, with their patina, important to the 
building’s cultural significance. I personally think they are. 

9. External Surfaces – Are They Significant?

There remains evidence on the east facing wall, and under the eaves generally, that the 
house was painted in an ochre lime wash, with white painted pseudo quoining around 
the windows and doors. On three sides of the house the limewash finish has washed off 
over the years, except immediately under the eaves and window sills. Heavy weather 
from the east is unusual, and therefore the limewashes have partially survived. It was 
told to me by  many years ago that the house was called the  

 because it was painted in white limewash. It seems the ochre coloured 
limewash was applied at a later date covering over the over the white limewash. A close 
examination of the east facing wall appears to bear this out. 

The question remains are the external surfaces, with their patina, important to the 
building’s cultural significance. I personally think they are. 

10. Internal Surfaces of the Basement.

The surfaces of the wall and floors of the basement are with the exception of the kitchen 
rough lime plaster render. The kitchen originally had a lath and plaster ceiling and hard 
plastered walls painted in blue limewash. The humidity from the boiler and the rising 
damp rotted-out the ceiling lathes and floor boards to the first floor. Clear evidence of 
the lath and plaster ceiling can be seen on the underside of the first-floor joists. 
From a technical point of view the treatment of the internal surfaces of the basement 
with a course lime mortar was very important. Given penetrating dampness coming 
through the walls below ground, and given the water table was within 300mm of the 
floor surface, it was critical that the walls and floors could breath. It appears the builders 
understood that any attempt at “tanking” these surfaces would have only aggravated the 
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rising damp issues, degraded the integrity of the walls forming the ground floor - and 
made the house itself intolerably damp. 

The nature of the surfaces in the basement reflect the technical requirements to keep 
the house dry, as well as the social relationships within the household. The servant’s 
quarters, with the exception of the kitchen, did not warrant fine hard plaster or paint. 

Again, I believe, that the internal surfaces in the basement are culturally significant - 
both technically and socially. 

Conclusion. 

In discussing a number of aspects of the house and the property, I hope to have 
illustrated some ways in which the current statement of significance is inadequate. I 
hope this might prompt some further study of  and its cultural significance. 
I am hopeful that a revision of the Statement of Significance for will make it 
more comprehensive and accurate.  





To Moorabool Shire Council
Att: Manager Growth & Development
PO Box 18
Ballan VIC 3342

Date 30 April 2025

Subject: Submission Planning Scheme Amendment C085MOOR
Opposition to Heritage Overlay C085MOOR to the

due to Accessibility and Operational
Limitations
I am writing to formally oppose the proposed Heritage Overlay
C085MOOR to the

At the same time would I like to thank Demi Spencer for the meeting
from March 26, 2025 at the Ballan Council Office 15 Stead Street,
Ballan VIC 3342 for the friendly and professional information.

While I recognize the importance of preserving historical buildings,
this designation would impose severe restrictions on necessary future
upgrades, hindering both accessibility for disabled individuals and the
efficient .

1. Accessibility and Compliance with Disability Regulations
One of the most pressing concerns is that under the new Heritage
Overlay C085MOOR the would be unable to
modify its doorways and entries to ensure equitable access for
individuals with disabilities.

• Under the Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (DDA),

Submission 11



• The Heritage Overlay C085MOOR would prevent us from making
future necessary modifications, effectively denying equal access to

with disabilities.
Denying people with disabilities access to an essential service such

is neither practical nor equitable.

2.

• Employees are forced to work in cramped conditions, which poses
occupational health and safety risks.

•

ultimately affecting service
efficiency and customer satisfaction.

3. Community and Economic Impact
If we

are unable to modernize and expand, the impact will be felt by
residents, businesses, and employees alike.

• Customers, particularly elderly and disabled individuals, will face
continued difficulties accessing

• The inability to expand could force future service reductions and
disrupting the local economy and jobs.





Heritage overlay: HO252 

St John’s Anglican Church, 56 Simpson Street, Ballan 

Amendment to Heritage overlay proposal. 

We wish to make a submission in relation to the heritage overlay proposal for St John’s 

Anglican Church, Ballan. 

We support the inclusion of the bluestone church building (1861-2), headstones, stone gate 

piers, metal plaque on main door and church bell in the heritage overlay. The bell is clearly 

of historical and social significance.  

We oppose the inclusion of the bell tower. 

Our reasons are as follows: 

• The bell tower is not of historical significance (Criterion A). The bell tower was not

part of the design of the original church. The original design included a bellcote, a

stone structure on top of the church, in which the bell was housed. The bellcote can

clearly be seen in the sketch published in The Australian News for Home Readers, Vic,

Saturday 18th March 1865, page 7. The bellcote was later removed from the church

building during church works. The current bell tower therefore has no connection

with the diocesan architect Leonard Terry (Criterion H)  nor with his Early English

Gothic Revival style. The bell tower is a later construction, from the 20th century. It

has no historical design significance. There is no parish record of when it was built or

by whom.

• The bell tower is not of aesthetic significance (Criterion E). It is a basic wooden and

corrugated iron structure, which gives every appearance of being temporary. It has

no aesthetic appeal. We note that this structure does not appear in the photograph

of the church which is included in the heritage overlay proposal. We suggest that a

viewing of the structure would support our position on its lack of aesthetic appeal.

Current members of the parish certainly do not regard it as in any way attractive to

look at. At least some regard it as an eyesore.

• The bell tower is not of social significance (Criterion G). It has not been appropriately

maintained and has not been used for the purpose of ringing the bell for very many

years. We are not aware of any efforts to bring the bell tower back into use.  The bell

itself, however, is valued by the church community and Parish council has made a

plan to relocate the bell to a place on church grounds where it can be used again.
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Yours sincerely,  

 

 
 (incorporating St John’s Anglican Churches of Ballan and 

Bungaree). 

Our contact details: 

 

 






